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The Jefferson County Courthouse as designed and built by Gideon
Shryock (1802-1880) is considexably larger than the governmen-
tal complex the City and County first proposed in 1835 to build
jointly. The original plans by the City Architect, Shryock,

have been lost. However engravings published in 1844 and 1845

indicate that planned end-porticoes and a cupola were never at-
tempted, and the front (south) Doric portico was reduced from
hexastyle to tetrastyle. :

The basic mass appears as Shryock envisioned it, approximately
208' (east-west) by 93' (northssouth). When the combined €ity

Hall and Courthouse opened in 1842, the ground floor was occu-

pied by the City Police Departments, Jefferson County Sheriff
and various court clerks. The first floor, then divided by axis
hallways and an open rotunda (51' in diameter) into four quad-
rents, housed the Mayor and his Court and the Louisville Chan-
cery Court in the west wing and in the:east wing, the Jefferson
Circuit Court and Jefferson County Court. The second floor (now
4th) was not finished and was left vacant after the Federal
Court system and State government declined to use the space.

Albert Fink and Charles Stancliff were employed by the City in
1858 to complete the second floor (4th), to add.the front porti
co and enlarge ‘the stairway from the flrSt to the second floor.
In 1867, Joel Hart's statue of Henry Clay was placed on a metal

floor ene1031ng the oculus (27'7" in diameter) at the first
floor. The next signdificant' changed occured: in 1905, when as a
result of a fire which destroyed part of the roof, all wooden
items and exposed members were removed or covered with metal
frames. Thus the major doorways presently have pleasing, but
architecturally incongruous, Georgian style frames. The new
structural members support concrete floors except in the rotun-
da area and part of the volume created under the roof is used
for records storage. The rotunda dome is not orlglnal but pro-

Although Fink contemplated finishing the Courthouse after
Shryock's design, only the reduced front portico was added.
Apparently, Fink attempted to curtail the limestone deteriora-
tion which had forced Shryock to select a different quarry by
the time he was ready to erect the entablature. The outside
appearance was described in 1842 as one of 'polished stone."
This was probably the result of rubbing the flaking stone with
a caustic solution. However when the errosion continued, stucco
was applied to a deeply scored surface. This unattractive
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is-rA-r EMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE . - i
Although not completed as envisioned by the Kentucky
architect Gideon Shryock, the Jefferson County Courthouse
is considered his principal work in Louisville. Its massive
proportions reflect the importance Louisville was beginning
to feel in the late 1830's as a result of its new canal and
increased river commerce.

The Courthouse has been the .seat of government for. Jefferson
County since 1842 and it served concurrently as Louisville's
City Hall for a period. Significantly, the City and Cuunty
jointly undertook the structure's construction and the City
employed Shryock as its first City Architect. Briefly in
1862, .while the, security of Frankfort was in doubt, State
government occupied the second floor. 'Most citizens of
Jefferson County have had. occasion to use this Courthouse
over the past 129 years to either record documents, obtain
licenses, pay taxes, dispense: justice;~ or: more: recently to

petition for services,

B

Since the early 1950's,

an effort to beautify the Courthouse

grounds has been underway.

The resulting park-like setting

is one of the few open areas-in center city and it provides
a pleasant environment for two important scuptural works:
Ezekiel's statue 6f Jefferson and Valois' statue of Louis
XVI.




Architect, Gideon Shryock,"

Samuel W. Thomas, "The Jefferson County Courthouse:
Designed and Built between 1835 and 1842, by the City

Louisville Bar Association

Bulletin, Vol. 17, No. 1 (1967), pp. 6-9.
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scoring has necessitated periodic restuccoing and has not
allowed the use of modern surface hardening agents.

The front portico divides four plastered bays. The ends show
indications of the originally planned porticos. In recent
years the other entrances have been protected from falling
ornamentation and weather by covered doorways. An elevator
shaft was added to the north elevation in 1901 to provide
service for the Courthouse and a courts annex which was
attached by corridors over Court Place to the north.
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